

GRETCHEN WHITMER GOVERNOR STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS LANSING

ORLENE HAWKS DIRECTOR

MICHIGAN BOARD OF CHIROPRACTIC MAY 27, 2021 MEETING

APPROVED MINUTES

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267, as amended, the Michigan Board of Chiropractic met on May 27, 2021. The meeting was held via Zoom, pursuant to MCL 15.263 and 15.263a, and the City of Lansing Resolution #2021-081.

CALL TO ORDER

Leigh Elceser, D.C., Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.

ROLL CALL

Members Present: Leigh Elceser, D.C., Chairperson

Attended remotely from the city of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan.

Ryan Thornton, D.C., Vice-Chairperson

Attended remotely from the city of Byron Center, Kent County, Michigan.

Michael Connelly, Public Member Attended remotely from the city of East Lansing, Ingham County, Michigan.

Cecil Forbes, D.C. (Arrived at 10:06 a.m.) Attended remotely from the city of Detroit, Wayne County, Michigan.

Joel Kirsch, D.C.

Attended remotely from the city of Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan.

Patricia Odette, D.C.

Attended remotely from the city of Devils Lake, Wayne County, Michigan.

Robyn Peake, Public Member

BUREAU OF PROFESSIONAL LICENSING 611 W. OTTAWA • P.O. BOX 30670 • LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909 www.michigan.gov/bpl • 517-241-0199 LARA is an equal opportunity employer/program Attended remotely from the city of Paw Paw, Van Buren County, Michigan.

Beau Taylor, Public Member

Attended remotely from the city of Jackson, Jackson County, Michigan.

Members Absent: Robert Maciolek, Public Member

Staff Present: Kimmy Catlin, Board Support, Boards and Committees Section Weston MacIntosh, Senior Policy Analyst, Boards and Committees Section Bryan Modelski, Deputy Operations Officer, LARA Kerry Przybylo, Manager, Boards and Committees Section Derek Sova, LARA Office of Policy and Legislative Affairs

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

MOTION by Connelly, seconded by Thornton, to approve the agenda with the addition of Canadian Licensure by Endorsement discussion after the approval of the minutes.

A roll call vote was held:

Yeas – Connelly, Kirsch, Odette, Peake, Taylor, Thornton, Elceser Nays – None

MOTION PREVAILED

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

MOTION by Connelly, seconded by Thornton, to approve the February 25, 2021 meeting minutes as presented.

A roll call vote was held: Ye

Yeas – Connelly, Forbes, Kirsch, Odette, Peake, Taylor, Thornton, Elceser Nays – None

MOTION PREVAILED

Canadian Licensure by Endorsement

Modelski and Sova introduced themselves to the Board. Modelski informed the Board that there was a statutory amendment that required the board to review potential changes for the licensure by endorsement rule. Modelski stated that the Department recommends a temporary resolution to be in effect until revised rules can be promulgated.

Discussion was held.

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes May 27, 2021 Page 3 of 4

REGULATORY CONSIDERATIONS

None

OLD BUSINESS

None

NEW BUSINESS

CE Program Review

MOTION by Connelly, seconded by Peake, to accept the recommendations made by the Continuing Education Committee. (Addendum 1).

| A roll call vote was held: | Yeas – Connelly, Forbes, Kirsch, Odette, Peake, Taylor, |
|----------------------------|---|
| | Thornton, Elceser |
| | Nays – None |
| MOTION PREVAILED | |

MOTION PREVAILED

Rules Discussion

MacIntosh presented the draft rules and the comments made at the public hearing.

Discussion was held.

MOTION by Connelly, seconded by Peake, to accept the rules as presented, except for the inclusion of Providers of Approved Continuing Education (PACE) of the Federation of Chiropractic Licensing Boards (FCLB) as an approved organization.

| A roll call vote was held: | Yeas – Connelly, Forbes, Odette, Peake, |
|----------------------------|---|
| | Thornton, Elceser |
| | Nays – Kirsch |
| | Abstain –Taylor |

MOTION PREVAILED

Board Education

MacIntosh said that material was uploaded to Egress, under Resources, to provide board members with more information on how the Board and Department function.

Michigan Board of Chiropractic Meeting Minutes May 27, 2021 Page 4 of 4

Reappointment Reminder

Catlin reminded members whose terms end in 2021 to apply for reappointment if they wish to do so.

Chair Report

Elceser thanked the Board and the Department for their work.

Department Update

MacIntosh stated that the Bureau will hold the next Board Member Training on July 13, 2021. All Board members are welcome to attend.

Catlin reminded the Board to use their state email addresses.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Lisa Love-Smith thanked the Board and the Department for their work on the draft rules.

Martin Brown thanked the Board and the Department for their work on the draft rules and stated that Canadian licensure should be considered as equivalent to Michigan licensure.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held August 26, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. at 611 West Ottawa Street, Upper-Level Conference Room 4, Lansing, Michigan.

ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Connelly, seconded by Taylor, to adjourn the meeting at 11:32 a.m.

A roll call vote was held: Yeas – Connelly, Forbes, Kirsch, Odette, Peake, Taylor, Thornton, Elceser Nays – None

MOTION PREVAILED

Minutes approved by the Board on June 21, 2021.

Prepared by: Kimmy Catlin, Board Support Bureau of Professional Licensing

May 27, 2021

The Continuing Education Committee recommends approving the following programs:

- **DC HOURS –** A Multimodal Approach to Treating Low Back Pain, online, June 5, 2021, for 3 hours in physical measures and 3 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Alzheimer's Disease a Basic Overview, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Alzheimer's Disease a Nutritional Approach, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Alzheimer's Disease Patient Support, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- PALMER COLLEGE Association for the History of Chiropractic Conference, in Davenport, IA, June 19-20, 2021, for 6 hours in chiropractic technique.
- **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE –** MediHerb Masterclass Metabolic Wellbeing: The Forgotten Health Emergency, online, May 21-22, 2021, for 8 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Spine Level 2, several dates, and locations for 24 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Upper Extremity Level 1, several dates and locations, for 16 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Upper Extremity Level 2, several dates and locations, for 24 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Pediatrics & Pregnancy: An Update on Chiropractic Management, on August 7, 2021, in Grand Rapids, MI, and August 28, 2021, in Detroit, MI for 2 hours in chiropractic techniques and 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Ties That Bind: The ABC's of Tethered Oral Tissues, from July 11, 2021 to December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in chiropractic techniques and 7 hours in unclassified credits
- **DC HOURS –** Chiropractic Management and Treatment of Headaches, online, March 25, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Chiropractic Risk Management Record Keeping and Compliance, online, June 22, 2021, for 2 hours in practice management.
- **DC HOURS –** Chiropractic Role in Athletic Performance and Recovery, online, May 15, 2021, for 4 hours in physical measures.
- DC HOURS Does the Subluxation Exist, online, May 20, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Evaluation and Management of Low Back Conditions Part 1, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management and 1 hour in physical measures.
- DC HOURS Healthcare Compliance, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in practice management.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Pediatrics 201: Supplementary Chiropractic Pediatrics Distance Learning, online, May 15, 2021 – December 31, 2021, for 3 hours in chiropractic techniques and 10 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Courses on Chiropractic in Sports and Fitness, online, June 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 4 hours in chiropractic techniques and 12 hours in unclassified credits.
- **DC HOURS –** Immune Strategies for the 21st Century, online, June 26, 2021, for 4 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Instrument Assisted Soft Tissue Manipulation Part 1: introduction, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in performance of ordering tests.
- **DC HOURS –** Instrument Assisted Soft Tissue Manipulation Part 2: Spine and Pelvis online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in chiropractic techniques.
- **DC HOURS –** Instrument Assisted Soft Tissue Manipulation Part 3: Upper Extremities, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in chiropractic techniques.
- DC HOURS Instrument Assisted Soft Tissue Manipulation Part 4: Lower Extremities, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in chiropractic techniques.
- **DC HOURS –** Laser Part 1: Class 4 laser Therapy in Clinical Practice, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Laser Part 2: Class 4 Laser Therapy Safety and Risk Management, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Laser Part 3: Class 4 Laser Therapy Science and Physiology, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Laser Part 4: Photo biomodulation A Review of the Studies, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- DC HOURS Living in a Toxic World, online, March 18, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.

- **DC HOURS –** Low Tech Office Rehab for Posture Correction, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- MCCA Chiropractic Update (Virtual), online, November 6, 2021, December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in physical measures, 6 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 4 hours in pain and symptom management, 1 hours in ethics, 1 hour in sexual boundaries, and 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- MCCA Chiropractic Update, Warren, MI, November 13-14, 2021, for 2 hours in physical measures, 6 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 4 hours in pain and symptom management, 1 hours in ethics, 1 hour sexual boundaries, and 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- **DC HOURS –** Managing the Patient with Fatigue, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE –** McKenzie Method of Mechanical Diagnosis and Therapy: Part A Lumbar Spine, in Riverdale NJ, June 11-13, 2021, for 21 hours in chiropractic techniques.
- **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE –** Chiropractic Recordkeeping, Coding, Compliance, Documentation and Risk Management, online, March 20-27, 2021, for 12 hours in unclassified credits.
 - **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE –** Immunobowl: The Role of Body Systems in Immune Health, online, February 26-27, 2021, for 8 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE MLX Mastery, online, May 13-15, 2021, for 3 hours in chiropractic techniques and 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE NUCCA Spring Conference, April 8-10, 2021 live on-site in Newport Beach, CA (max 18) or April 8-10, 2021 - live online (max 18) or April 10-May 31, 2021 - online, on-demand, for 17 hours in physical measures, 23 hours in chiropractic technique, and 2 hours in unclassified credits.
- **DC HOURS –** Nutritional Medicine: Evidence-Based Impact on Anti-Aging and Disease Prevention, online, May 22, 2021, for 6 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Nutritional Psychology: Anxiety, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** OSHA Standards for Communicable Diseases, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE** Professional Series: Nutrition Support for you Patients, May 14-15, July 30-31, August 13-14, September 10-11, 2021, in Milwaukee, WI, for 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- DC HOURS Radiology Rounds: Reducing X-Ray Anxiety, online, June 17, 2021, for 2 hours in physical measures.
- **DC HOURS –** Relevant Rehab: Chronic Low Back Pain: A Multimodal Approach of Active Care Part 1, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Relevant Rehab: Chronic Low Back Pain: A Multimodal Approach of Active Care Part 2, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** Stress: Supporting our Patients Through Uncertain Times, online, May 25, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** The Art of Muscle Testing, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in physical measures and 2 hours in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** The Consequences of Dysbiosis, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** the Consequences of Leaky Gut Syndrome, online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management.
- **DC HOURS –** The Documentation of Medical Necessity online, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in practice management.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE First Adjustment, May 15-16, 2021, Atlanta, GA, for 5 hours in chiropractic techniques and 7 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE ACBSP 2021 Chiropractic Sports Sciences Symposium, online, April 24-25, 2021, for 1 hour in physical measures, 1 hour in performance of and ordering tests, and 10 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE G-Force Summit, in Chicago, IL, May 1-2, 2021, for 1 hour in physical measures,4 hours in chiropractic technique, and 7 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Full Body Recertification, several dates and locations, for 8 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Lower Extremity Level 1, several dates and locations, for 16 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Lower Extremity Level 2, several dates and locations, for 24 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Nerve, several dates and locations, for 24 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE Active Release Techniques Spine, several dates and locations, for 16 hours in unclassified credits.

- PARKER UNIVERSITY Parker Seminars Orlando, online, June 11-June 13, 2021, for 4 hours in practice management, 1 hour in physical measures, 6 hours in chiropractic techniques, 2 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 4 hours in pain and symptom management, and 18 hours in ethics.
- NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE The ACA Counsel on Nutrition: Natural Interventions in Immunology, October 14-17, 2021, in Port St. Lucie, FL, for 7.5 hours in chiropractic techniques, 2 hours in ethics, and 14 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE UNIVERSITY Advanced Chiropractic Coding and Billing, online, April 24, 2021, for 8 hours in unclassified credits.
- **NEW YORK CHIROPRACTIC COLLEGE –**Microbiome CE Series, January 1, 2021 December 31, 2021, for 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Sexual Boundaries and Harassment, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in sexual boundaries.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Professional Ethics & Boundaries, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in ethics.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Intro to Soft Tissue Treatments, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Assess of Nerve Disturbance, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Chiropractic Taping Techniques, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 3 hours in pain and symptom management and 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS** Functional BioKinetics Lower Trunk & Extremities, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management and 5 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Functional Movement & Rehab Strategies, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management and 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Inflammation & Nutrition, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Myofascial Disruption Technique, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management and 5 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS** Rehab Exercises, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management and 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Functional BioKinetics Upper Trunk & Extremities, online, June 1, 2021- December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in pain and symptom management and 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Assessment of Neurological Disturbance, in Romulus, MI, October 2, 2021, for 3 hours in physical measures, 3 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 1 hour in ethics, 1 hour in sexual boundaries, and 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Chiropractic Care for Pregnancy and Newborns though Teens, June 12, 2021, in Ft. Wayne, FL and July 31, 2021, in Flint, MI, for 12 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS** Diet and Nutrition, in Grand Rapids, MI, November 6, 2021, for 4 hours in physical measures and 8 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Extremity Adjusting, October 9, 2021 in Kalamazoo, MI November 11, 2021, in Lansing, MI, November 13, 2021, Flint, MI for 3 hours in physical measures, 4 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 2 hours in pain and symptom management and 3 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS** Inflammation and Food Sensitivities, in Grand Rapids, MI, September 25, 2021, for 3 hours in physical measures, 3 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 1 hour in pain and symptom management, and 5 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS** Nerve Entrapments and How to Treat them Successfully, in Lansing, MI, October 23, 2021, for 3 hours in pain and symptom management, and 9 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Neurology & Vagus Nerve, in Romulus, MI, October 28, 2021, for 2 hours in physical measures, 4 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 2 hours in pain and symptom management, and 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Practical Methods & Analysis of VSC, July 8, 2021, in Grand Rapids, MI, November 6, 2021, in Traverse City, MI, for 2 hours in physical measures, 1 hour in pain and symptom management, and 9 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Rehabilitation Exercises and Modalities, in Traverse City, MI, July 10, 2021, for 3 hours in physical measures, 1 hour in performance of and ordering tests, 2 hours in pain and symptom management, and 6 hours in unclassified credits.
- **FETTERMAN EVENTS –** Upper Extremity Taping Techniques, June 5, 2021, in South Bend, IN, October 21, 2021, in Bay City, MI, for 6 hours in physical measures, 3 hours in performance of and ordering tests, 2 hours in pain and symptom management, 1 hour in ethics, 1 hour in sexual boundaries.
- LIFE UNIVERSITY Advanced Pelvic and Cervical Analysis, online, January 1, 2021, December 31, 2021, for 4 hours in unclassified credits.
- LIFE UNIVERSITY Case Reviews from Neuro Life Institute, online, January 1, 2021, December 31, 2021, for 4 hours in unclassified credits.

LIFE UNIVERSITY – Community Leadership Through Chiropractic Practice, online, January 1, 2021, - December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in unclassified credits. LIFE UNIVERSITY - Ergonomics, online, January 1, 2021, - December 31, 2021, for 2 hours in unclassified credits.

The Continuing Education Committee recommends denying the following programs because the activity requested requires in person attendance:

UWS/DC ONLINE – ACBSP Concussion Registry Course, online, April 24-June 30, 2021, for 6 hours in practice management and 6 hours in performance of and ordering tests.

DC HOURS – Evaluation and Treatment of Inhibited and Hypertonic Muscles, online, January 1, 2021 – December 31, 2021, for 1 hour in pain and symptom management and 1 hour in physical measures.